
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 

October 8, 2012 
5:00 PM 

 

1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Brad Allison, Altadena Valley Presbyterian Chruch 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. Candidates, Announcements and Guest Recognition 
6. Mayor's Report 
7. City Manager’s Report 
8. Councilors’ Reports 
9. Approval Of Minutes – September 24, 2012 (Regular Meeting) and September 27, 2012 

(Special Called Meeting); 

Old Business  

10. Resolution Number 4340 – A Resolution Accepting Dedication Of The Final Portion Of 
A Street Called Ves Trace; Phil Nichols, Developer 

11. Resolution Number 4335 - A Resolution Ordering The Demolition Of A Building Or 
Structure Located At 3363 Mountainside Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Parcel ID# 28-
23-2-4-3-Rr-0, In Compliance With Sections 11-40-30 Through 11-40-36, Sections 11-
53b-1 Through 11-53b-16, Inclusive, Of The Code Of Alabama, And In Compliance 
With Ordinance Number 2382 Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; And Calling For 
Said Demolition To Be Performed By The City Of Vestavia Hills And Directing The City 
Attorney And The City Clerk To Cause The Cost Of Such Demolition To Be Charged 
Against The Land On Which The Building Or Structure Exists As A Municipal Lien Or 
Cause Such Cost To Be Recovered In A Suit At Law Against The Owner Or Owners 

New Business 

12. Resolution Number 4346 – A Resolution Approving A 060 Retail Table Wine License 
For Interveston Wines, Inc., D/B/A The Wine Cellar, 1080 Montgomery Highway; 
Danny O. Meadows And Werner H. Beiersdoerfer, Executives (This Request Is A Change 
Of Location Only) 



13. Resolution Number 4347 – A Resolution Approving A 240 Non-Profit Tax Exempt 
Liquor License For Ducks Unlimited; 1973 Merryvale Road; Randy L. Graves, James A. 
Flood And Daniel P. Theil, Executives 

14. Resolution Number 4348 - A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into An 
Agreement With Alabama Department Of Transportation (ALDOT) For Project Number 
STPBH-9802(88) TOPICS – Phase VIII Roadway Intersection And Signal Improvements  

15. Resolution Number 4349 – A Resolution For The Installation And Maintenance Of 
Traffic Control Signals And/Or Street Lighting For Projects STPBH-9802(88) TOPICS – 
Phase VIIII – Roadway Intersection And Signal Improvements 

New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent) 

16. Resolution Number 4350 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor To Utilize Veterans 
Landscaping To Haul Dirt To The Sicard Hollow Mine Reclamation Property 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

17. Resolution Number 4315 – A Resolution To Perform Drainage Repair And 
Improvements At 4025 And 4045 Meadowview Circle 

18. Resolution Number 4316 – A Resolution To Perform Drainage Repair And 
Improvements At 1317 Parliament Lane And 1901 Balfour Drive 

19. Resolution Number 4317 – A Resolution To Perform Drainage Repair And 
Improvements At 1804 And 1808 Glendmere Drive 

20. Ordinance Number 2418 - An Ordinance Regulating Soliciting, Peddling And 
Panhandling In The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

21. Citizens Comments 
22. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
September 24, 2012, 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

SEPTEMBER 24, 2012 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Council President called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with 
the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Steve Ammons, Council President  
      Jim Sharp, President Pro-Tem 
      Linda Allison  
      John Henley 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   George Pierce 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Randy Robertson, City Manager 
      Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Deputy Treasurer 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
 
 Invocation was given by Bryan Gunn, Shades Mountain Baptist Church, followed 
by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, CANDIDATES, GUESTS 
 

• Virginia Vinson, candidate for Jefferson County Circuit Judge, Place 27, 
introduced herself and asked for support in the November election. 

• Sherri Colman Friday, candidate for Jefferson County Probate Judge, Place 2, 
introduced herself and asked for support in the November election. 

• Jill Ganus, candidate for Jefferson County District Judge, Bessemer Cutoff, 
introduced herself and asked for support in the November election. 

• Wendy Appling presented Certificates of Recognition to each of the City’s Poll 
Chiefs who served in the August Municipal election. 

 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 24, 2012, 

Page 2 
 

 
EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH 

 
 Mr. Robertson presented Wendy Appling, Office of the City Clerk, with the 
Employee of the Month award.  He stated that Wendy has been employed with the City 
for almost 13 years and has been an outstanding employee.  Wendy’s son, Luke Appling, 
was present to accept the award with her. 
 
 

MAYOR’S REPORTS 
 

• The Mayor stated that the annual “National Night Out” will be held on Tuesday, 
October 2, 2012 and invited everyone to take part in the event. 

• The annual induction of the Vestavia Hills Sports Hall of Fame will be held on 
October 11, 2012 at the Vestavia Country Club beginning at 6 PM.  This event 
recognizes local athletes and coaches. 

• The Mayor reported a recent meeting with ALDOT made some progress in 
beginning again to construct sidewalks in the community.  

• The Holiday in the Hills celebration is moving forward beginning with an open 
house in November hosted by the Chamber of Commerce. 

• The Mayor stated that Mr. Robertson and Brian Davis have been working on a 
Veterans Day celebration to be held on November 12, 2012 at 6 PM.  Two 
esteemed keynote speakers are invited. 

• LifeTime Fitness has indicated that progress is so good on the construction of 
their facility that they moved the anticipated opening date to March of 2013.  This 
is 2 months ahead of schedule. 

• The Friends of the Library will host their annual book sale on October 5-8, 2012, 
with a wine and cheese party on October 5. 

 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS 
 

• None. 
 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

• Mr. Ammons stated that Mr. Pierce was not in attendance tonight because his 
daughter was in labor with his grandchild. 

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of September 4, 2012 (Special Called Meeting) and September 4, 
2012 (Work Session) were presented for approval.   
 



City Council Minutes 
September 24, 2012, 

Page 3 
 

MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes and approve them as 
presented was by Mr. Sharp and second by Ms. Allison.  Voice vote as 
follows: 

Ms. Allison – yes   Mr. Henley – abstain 
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
     Motion carried. 

 
 
 The minutes of September 10, 2012 (Regular Meeting) were presented for 
approval.   
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes and approve them as 

presented was by Mr. Henley and second by Ms. Allison.  Voice vote as 
follows: 

Ms. Allison – yes   Mr. Henley – yes 
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
     Motion carried. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS  
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4341 

Resolution Number 4341 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor To Change 
Insurance Providers On The Workers’ Compensation Insurance 
Coverage For The City Of Vestavia Hills 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4341 was by Mr. Sharp and second 
was by Ms. Allison. 

 
 Mayor Zaragoza stated that the City’s insurance was scheduled to expire soon and 
Mr. Robertson has been working with carriers in order to provide for a new one effective 
October 1.   
 
 Mr. Robertson stated that after working with several carriers, the best vendor for 
the City’s workers’ compensation insurance should be awarded to J.R. Prewitt based 
upon their proposal, a copy of which is included in the Resolution. 
 
 John Prewitt was in attendance.  He and Mr. Robertson answered questions posed 
by the City Council concerning the premiums, deductibles and provisions of the 
coverage. 
 
 Mr. Robertson indicated that this will decrease the premiums that are currently 
paid by the City with basically the same coverage. 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 24, 2012, 

Page 4 
 

 Mr. Boone indicated that he, too, attended the meetings with the vendors and he 
recommends this coverage based upon: (1) price; (2) discounts from hospitals and 
physicians given to this company; (3) no requirement of a letter of credit; (4) the claim 
handling process described by the vendor; (5) settlement input from the City; and (6) the 
proactive safety training offered. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Ms. Allison – yes   Mr. Henley – yes 
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
     Motion carried. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4342 

Resolution Number 4342 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into An 
Agreement With Chase Commercial Realty Inc., As An Exclusive 
Agent To Procure The Sale Of Certain Real Estate Owned By The 
City 

 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for unanimous consent for the immediate 
consideration and action on proposed Resolution Number 4342. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action 

on Resolution Number 4342 was by Mr. Sharp.  Second was by Ms. 
Allison.  Roll call vote as follows: 

Ms. Allison – yes   Mr. Henley – yes 
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
     Motion carried. 

 
 
MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4342 was by Mr. Henley and second 

was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 Mr. Robertson explained that this Resolution would allow Chase Commercial 
Realty to exclusively market the City’s Public Works facility.  He explained the terms 
and provisions of the agreement and the agents’ ability to sell and market and the 
resources available. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that he has reviewed the agreement and made some slight 
revisions from the original.  The agreement in the Resolution tonight meets all legal 
requirements. 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 24, 2012, 

Page 5 
 

 Questions from the Council included recommending a price.  However, the 
Council concurred it was better not to opt for a particular price at this time. 
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present to 
address the Council concerning this Resolution, Mr. Ammons closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Ms. Allison – yes   Mr. Henley – yes 
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
     Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4343 

Resolution Number 4343 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor To File 
Application With Alabama Department Of Transportation And 
Provide Such Additional Information To ALDOT As May Be 
Required 

 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for unanimous consent for the immediate 
consideration and action on proposed Resolution Number 4343. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action 

on Resolution Number 4343 was by Ms. Allison.  Second was by Mr. 
Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

Ms. Allison – yes   Mr. Henley – yes 
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
     Motion carried. 

 
MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4343 was by Mr. Henley and second 

was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 The Mayor explained that this is a request to file application for ATRIP funding 
to assist with the street repaving in three areas of the City:  Tyler Road/Columbiana Road 
and portions of Rocky Ridge Road in cooperation with Hoover and Jefferson County; and 
Overton Road from I-459 to Overton in cooperation with Mountain Brook. 
 
 Mr. Brady stated that this is an 80/20 match of funding and the City would have 
to adopt a resolution pledging the 20% match.  He indicated that this funding does not 
include any design costs or incidental costs such as moving of utilities.   
 
 Discussion ensued concerning the breakdown of cost per municipality, the cost of 
moving utilities, priority of funding, etc. 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 24, 2012, 

Page 6 
 

 
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present to 
address the Council concerning this Resolution, Mr. Ammons closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Ms. Allison – yes   Mr. Henley – yes 
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
     Motion carried. 

 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 Mr. Ammons stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting of 
October 8, 2012 at 5 PM. 

• Resolution Number 4340 – A Resolution Accepting Dedication Of The Final Portion 
Of A Street Called Ves Trace; Phil Nichols, Developer 

 
 
 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 

None. 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 Mr. Ammons stated that the Council needed to move into Executive Session in 
order to discuss the purchase/sale of property.  He explained that the Session is estimated 
to last approximately 60 minutes and asked Mr. Boone to verify that is a legal reason for 
an Executive Session.   
 
 Mr. Boone concurred and Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion for the Council to move into Executive Session for the discussion 

of purchase/sale for an estimated 60 minutes was by Mr. Sharp and second 
was by Ms. Allison.  On a roll call vote: 

Ms. Allison – yes   Mr. Henley – yes 
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
     Motion carried. 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 24, 2012, 

Page 7 
 

 The Council exited the Chamber at 5:55 PM and entered into Executive Session.  
At 7:40 PM, they re-entered the Chamber and Mr. Ammons called the meeting back to 
order. 
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:44 PM was by Mr. Henley.  Mr. Sharp 

seconded the motion.  Voice vote as follows: 
Ms. Allison – yes   Mr. Henley – yes 
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
     Motion carried. 

 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 



City Council Minutes 
Special Meeting 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

SEPTEMBER 27, 2012 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in special session on this date at 4:30 PM 
following posting/publication as required by Alabama law.  The Council President called 
the meeting to order and the City Clerk checked the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Steve Ammons, Council President  
      Jim Sharp, President Pro-Tem 
      George Pierce 
      Linda Allison* 

John Henley 
       *arrived at 4:40 PM 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Randy Robertson, City Manager 
      Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Tim Holcomb, Deputy Police Chief 
      Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Deputy Treasurer 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4344 

Resolution Number 4344 – A Resolution To Change Insurance Providers On 
Certain Policies Of The City Of Vestavia Hills 

 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for unanimous consent for the immediate 
consideration and action on proposed Resolution Number 4344. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action 

on Resolution Number 4344 was by Mr. Pierce.  Second was by Mr. 
Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes 
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 



City Council Minutes 
Special Meeting 

Page 2 
 

     Motion carried. 
 
 
MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4344 was by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Robertson explained that this Resolution would change the City’s insurance 
carrier for general liability to One Beacon Insurance effective October 1, 2012.  He stated 
that the premiums are a bit higher than the previous carrier; however, altogether the 
premiums for all of the City’s insurance will be less. 
 
 He explained that he has worked with a group of individuals from J. Smith Lanier 
and Company who shopped for these carriers.  He explained the next Resolution will 
change the property insurance to Federal Insurance Company (Chubb). 
 
 Questions from the Council included recommending the premiums, the 
deductible, the companys’ ratings, etc.  
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present to 
address the Council concerning this Resolution, Mr. Ammons closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes 
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
     Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4345 

Resolution Number 4345 – A Resolution To Change Insurance Providers On 
Certain Policies Of The City Of Vestavia Hills 

 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for unanimous consent for the immediate 
consideration and action on proposed Resolution Number 4345. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action 

on Resolution Number 4345 was by Mr. Pierce.  Second was by Mr. 
Sharp.  Roll call vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes 
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
     Motion carried. 

 
MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4345 was by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mr. Sharp. 
 



City Council Minutes 
Special Meeting 

Page 3 
 

 Ms. Allison arrived at the meeting and Mr. Ammons apprised her of the prior 
conversation. 
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present to 
address the Council concerning this Resolution, Mr. Ammons closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Ms. Allison – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes  
Mr. Henley – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mr. Ammons – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 

None. 
 
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn the meeting at 4:45 PM was by Mr. Pierce.  Mr. Sharp 

seconded the motion.  Voice vote as follows: 
Ms. Allison – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes  
Mr. Henley – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mr. Ammons – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 



Resolution Number 4340 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4340 
 

 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE DEDICATION OF THE FINAL 
PORTION OF A STREET KNOWN AS VES TRACE 

 
 WHEREAS, Phil Nichols is the developer for Ves Trace Subdivision in Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama.  This dedication consists of the final portion of a street named Ves Trace; such 

dedication not to include any improvements other than the streets named in this Resolution. 

 WHEREAS, the streets were built according to the Vestavia Hills specifications and the 

development company is presenting them to the City of Vestavia Hills for acceptance complete 

with a guarantee against any defects for a period of one (1) year from date of dedication. 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, that the City hereby accepts the offer of 

dedication made by Phil Nichols for the final portion of Ves Trace and is hereby a public street. 

 ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of October, 2012. 

 
 
 

      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 







Resolution Number 4335 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4335 
 

A RESOLUTION ORDERING THE DEMOLITION OF A 
BUILDING OR STRUCTURE LOCATED AT 3363 
MOUNTAINSIDE ROAD, VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, 
PARCEL ID# 28-23-2-4-3-RR-0, IN COMPLIANCE WITH 
SECTIONS 11-40-30 THROUGH 11-40-36, SECTIONS 11-53B-1 
THROUGH 11-53B-16, INCLUSIVE, OF THE CODE OF 
ALABAMA, AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 2382 OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA; 
AND CALLING FOR SAID DEMOLITION TO BE PERFORMED 
BY THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS AND DIRECTING THE 
CITY ATTORNEY AND THE CITY CLERK TO CAUSE THE 
COST OF SUCH DEMOLITION TO BE CHARGED AGAINST 
THE LAND ON WHICH THE BUILDING OR STRUCTURE 
EXISTS AS A MUNICIPAL LIEN OR CAUSE SUCH COST TO BE 
RECOVERED IN A SUIT AT LAW AGAINST THE OWNER OR 
OWNERS  

 
 WHEREAS, the appropriate Municipal Officials determined that the condition of 
the building or structure located at 3363 Mountainside Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
Parcel I.D. Number 28-23-2-4-3-RR-0 is in such a condition as to make it dangerous to 
the life, health, property, morals, safety, or general welfare of the public or the occupants. 
  
 WHEREAS,  contemporaneously with the filing of “Finding of Public Nuisance, 
Notice and Order to Remedy and Notice of Lis Pendens” on Jeffrey A. and Terri L. 
Knowles; Jeffrey A. Knowles; AmSouth Bank; Mortgage Electronic Registration 
Systems, Inc.; GMAC Mortgage, LLC F/K/A GMAC Mortgage Corporation; Department 
of Treasury; Internal Revenue Service; Jefferson County Sewer Service Office and 
Birmingham Water Works, a copy of same was sent via certified mail, properly 
addressed and postage prepaid to: 
 

A. All person or persons, firm, association, or corporation last assessing the 
subject property for state taxes to the address on file in the Jefferson County Tax 
Collector’s Office; 

 
B. The record property owner or owners (including any owner or owners of 

an interest in the subject property) as shown from a search of records of the Office of the 
Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, at the owner or owners’ last known 
address and at the address of the subject property; 

 
C. All mortgagees of record as shown from a search of the records of the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, to the address set forth in 
the mortgage or, if no address for the mortgagee is set forth in the mortgage, to the 
address determined to be the correct address by the appropriate Municipal Officials; 

 



Resolution Number 4335 
Page 2 

 
D.  All lien holders of record as shown from a search of the records of the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama to the address set forth in 
the statement of lien or, if no address for the lien holder is set forth in the statement of 
lien, to the address determined to be the correct address by the appropriate Municipal 
Officials; and 

 
E. Such other persons who are otherwise known to the City Clerk or to the 

appropriate Municipal Officials who could have an interest in the subject property; 
 

 WHEREAS, contemporaneously with the filing of the “Finding of Public 
Nuisance, Notice and Order to Remedy, and Notice of Lis Pendens”, a copy of the same 
was posted at or within three feet of an entrance to the building on the subject property 
and posted in three public places located within the City of Vestavia Hills: 1) Vestavia 
Hills Municipal Center, 2) Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, and 3) Vestavia Hills 
Civic Center. 
 
  WHEREAS, notice that the appropriate Municipal Officials have made a finding 
that the subject property is a dangerous building because it is unsafe to the extent that it is 
a public nuisance and is subject to demolition and that a public hearing would be held on 
a certain date was also given to all interested parties and to the public at large by 
publication in the Alabama Messenger. 
  

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama while in regular session on Monday, September 10, 2012 at 5:00 p.m. as 
follows: 
 
 Section 1. A Public Hearing was held on September 10, 2012 at 5:00 p.m. 
and after due deliberation, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds 
that the structure standing at 3363 Mountainside Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Parcel 
ID# 28-23-2-4-3-RR-0 is unsafe to the extent of becoming a public nuisance to the 
citizens of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama and is due to be condemned and 
demolished in compliance with Sections 11-40-30 through 11-40-36 and Sections 11-
53B-1 through 11-53B-16, inclusive, of the Code of Alabama (1975), and Ordinance 
Number 2382 of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama;  
 
 Section 2. That said demolition is to be performed by the City of Vestavia 
Hills; and 
 
 Section 3. That the City Attorney and the City Clerk are hereby directed to 
cause the cost of such demolition to be charged against the land on which the building or 
structure is located and shall constitute a lien on the property for the amount of the 
assessment or cause such cost to be recovered in a suit at law against the owner or 
owners. 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 4335 
Page 3 

 
 
 ADOPTED this the 8th day of October, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CITY CLERK 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 
 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
legally adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 8th day 
of October, 2012 while in regular session on Monday, October 8, 2012, and the same 
appears of record in the minute book of said date of said City. 
 

 Witness my hand and seal of office this _____________, 20__. 
 
 
 
            
     ____________________________________ 
     Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4346 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR INTERVESTON WINES, INC., D/B/A THE 
WINE CELLAR; DANNY O. MEADOWS AND 
WERNER H. BEIERSDOERFER, EXECUTIVES 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for Interveston Wines, Inc., d/b/a The Wine Cellar, located at 1080 

Montgomery Highway, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the on- or off-premise sale of 060 

Retail Table Wine; Danny O. Meadows and Werner H. Beiersdoerfer, executives. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 8th day of October, 2012. 

 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
      Charles A. McCallum 
      Mayor 







 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4347 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR DUCKS UNLIMITED INC; RANDY L. 
GRAVES, DANIEL P. THEIL AND JAMES A. 
FLOOD, EXECUTIVES 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for Ducks Unlimited Inc, located at 4857 Willow Bend Road, Decatur, 

Alabama  35603 for the sale of 240 - Non profit tax exempt special event; Randy L. 

Graves, Daniel P. Theil and James A. Flood, executives. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 8th day of October, 2012. 

 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 













RESOLUTION NUMBER 4348









RESOLUTION NUMBER 4349 
 

A RESOLUTION FOR THE INSTALLATION AND 
MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNALS AND/OR 
STREET LIGHTING FOR PROJECTS STPBH-9802(088) TOPICS – 
PHASE VIIII – ROADWAY INTERSECTION AND SIGNAL 
IMPROVEMENTS 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, that the City enter into an agreement with the State 

of Alabama acting by and through the Alabama Department of Transportation for: 

 
The installation and/or maintenance of traffic control signals and/or street lighting for: 
  STPBH-9802(088) TOPICS – Phase VIII 

- Roadway Intersection and Signal Improvements 
 
Which agreement is before this Council, and that the agreement be executed in the name 

of the City, by the Mayor for and in its behalf and that it be attested by the City Clerk and 

the seal of the City be affixed thereto. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon the completion of the execution of 

the agreement by all parties, that a copy of such agreement be kept on file by the City 

Clerk. 

 ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of October, 2012. 

 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 

Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
Mayor 















RESOLUTION NUMBER 4350 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO UTILIZE 
VETERANS LANDSCAPING FOR HAULING DIRT TO THE 
SICARD HOLLOW MINE RECLAMATION PROPERTY 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to utilize the services of Veterans 

Landscaping to haul dirt to the Sicard Hollow Mine Reclamation Property at 

the rate of $60 per load for a total expense not to exceed $49,000; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4350 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of October, 

2012. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 





Resolution Number 4315 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4315 
 

A RESOLUTION TO PERFORM DRAINAGE REPAIR AND 
IMPROVEMENTS AT 4025 AND 4045 MEADOWVIEW CIRCLE 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Pursuant to Resolution Number 979, duly adopted and approved by the 

Vestavia Hills City Council on June 17, 1985, the City Engineer is hereby 

authorized to perform certain drainage repair and improvements at the 

following location:  4025 and 4045 Meadowview Circle; and 

2. An engineering report completed by the City Engineer is hereby attached to 

and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4315 as though written fully 

therein; and 

3. Pursuant to Resolution Number 2004, adopted and approved on October 6, 

1986, the property owners of said properties shall pay all costs and charges 

incurred by the City subject to payment by the property owner for said work 

upon completion of work; and 

4. This Resolution Number 4315 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of October, 2012. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Resolution Number 4315 
Page 2 

 
 
 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 











Resolution Number 4316 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4316 
 

A RESOLUTION TO PERFORM DRAINAGE REPAIR AND 
IMPROVEMENTS AT 1317 PARLIAMENT LANE AND 1901 
BALFOUR DRIVE 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Pursuant to Resolution Number 979, duly adopted and approved by the 

Vestavia Hills City Council on June 17, 1985, the City Engineer is hereby 

authorized to perform certain drainage repair and improvements at the 

following locations:  1317 Parliament Lane and 1901 Balfour Drive; and 

2. An engineering report completed by the City Engineer is hereby attached to 

and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4316 as though written fully 

therein; and 

3. Pursuant to Resolution Number 2004, adopted and approved on October 6, 

1986, the property owners of said properties shall pay all costs and charges 

incurred by the City subject to payment by the property owner for said work 

upon completion of work; and 

4. This Resolution Number 4316 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of October, 2012. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Resolution Number 4316 
Page 2 

 
 
 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

















RESOLUTION NUMBER 4317 
 

A RESOLUTION TO PERFORM DRAINAGE REPAIR AND 
IMPROVEMENTS AT 1804  AND 1808 GLENDMERE DRIVE 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Pursuant to Resolution Number 979, duly adopted and approved by the 

Vestavia Hills City Council on June 17, 1985, the City Engineer is hereby 

authorized to perform certain drainage repair and improvements at the 

following location:  1804 and 1808 Glendmere Drive; and 

2. An engineering report completed by the City Engineer is hereby attached to 

and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4317 as though written fully 

therein; and 

3. Pursuant to Resolution Number 2004, adopted and approved on October 6, 

1986, the property owners of said properties shall pay all costs and charges 

incurred by the City subject to payment by the property owner for said work 

upon completion of work; and 

4. This Resolution Number 4317 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of October, 2012. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 











ORDINANCE NUMBER 2418 
 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING  
SOLICITING, PEDDLING, AND PANHANDLING 

 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 

HILLS, ALABAMA, WHILE IN A REGULAR SESSION ON THE 8th DAY OF October, 

2012, AT 5:00 P.M. AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.    Definitions. 

 For the purposes of this Ordinance, the following words shall have the following 
meanings: 

 Solicitation means any of the following activities: 

(a) Seeking to obtain orders for the sale or exchange of goods, wares, merchandise or 
perishables of any kind, for any kind of remuneration or consideration, regardless 
of whether advance payment is sought; 

(b) Seeking to obtain prospective customers to apply for or to purchase insurance, 
publications or subscriptions to publications; 

(c) Seeking to obtain contributions or donations of any thing of value for the benefit 
of any individual, association, organization, corporation, or program; 

(d) Seeking to obtain orders or prospective customers for goods or services; 

(e) Requesting monies or contributions of other goods or services for any charity or 
non-profit organization or for-profit organization or any other type or form of 
entity.  

(f) Distributing handbills, written advertisements, or publications. 

 

Solicitor means a person engaged in the activities defined in this Ordinance as soliciting. 

Residence means any living unit contained within any building or structure that is 
occupied by any person as a dwelling consistent with the definition of “residence” as defined in 
the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 
Registrant or registered solicitor means any person who is subject to this Ordinance and 

who has obtained a valid certificate of registration from the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 
 
Charity or non-profit organization means any enterprise entered into with the primary 

purpose to pursue social, charitable, or other benevolent activities and that is classified as a tax-



Ordinance Number 2418 
Page 2 

 

 2

exempt organization under applicable provisions of the United States Internal Revenue Code and 
the regulations thereunder. 

 
Person means a natural person. 

 
 
SECTION 2.    Retailing merchandise from vehicles; solicitation within rights-of-way. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to park any motor vehicle or other 
vehicle for the purpose of making retail sales of merchandise from such 
vehicle while so parked within rights-of-way.  However, this Section shall 
not be construed to limit the right to park motor vehicles on the portions of 
the streets for the purpose of unloading merchandise sold at wholesale for 
delivery to duly licensed retail stores, nor to limit the right to park motor 
vehicles and other vehicles on the portions of the streets for any other 
purpose except the purpose of making retail sales of merchandise from 
such vehicles while so parked. 

(b) It shall be unlawful to solicit or otherwise make retail sales of any 
merchandise upon the sidewalks and in or upon the parkways running 
along or abutting upon any street except as allowed by the zoning 
ordinance of the City and after being duly licensed. 

 
SECTION 3.    Registration requirements for door-to-door solicitation. 

(a) Registration.  All persons desiring to engage in soliciting at residences in the city 
shall apply to the City at a cost of twenty-five dollars ($25.00), paid in cash or 
cash equivalent, for a monthly certificate of registration.  The certificate, executed 
by the city clerk or his designee, shall be maintained by the city clerk and a 
legible copy shall be carried by the registrant at all times while soliciting.  Upon 
request for inspection by an occupant of a residence or a police officer or a city 
license and tax examiner while the registered solicitor is transacting his business 
or seeking to transact his business at any residence, the registrant shall show his 
or her copy of the registration certificate. In addition to the registration fee, all 
other city ordinances levying business license fees and other license fees and 
taxes are applicable, including the business license ordinance requiring transient 
vendors to obtain a business license. 

(b) Application for certificate.  The city shall provide a standard form for use for 
registration of solicitors.  The applicant for the registration certificate shall state in 
writing upon his or her oath or affirmation that the information is truthfully 
provided to the best of his or her knowledge and belief. The applicant shall supply 
with or upon the registration form the following information: 

1. Applicant’s true, correct, and legal name and the name of the organization 
for which he/she will be soliciting. 



Ordinance Number 2418 
Page 3 

 

 3

2. Address and phone number of applicant’s home and applicant’s place of 
business. 

3. Names and addresses of the corporate officers or the partners and the 
managers, if any, of the entity for which the applicant will be soliciting. 

4. The purpose for which soliciting will be done. 

5. A brief description of the method of presentation that will be made. 

6. Whether a permit, license, or certificate of registration from any city in 
connection with soliciting has ever been revoked, explaining the 
circumstances. 

7. A statement as to whether or not the applicant has ever been convicted of a 
misdemeanor or a felony.   

8. Documentation that the person is authorized to solicit for the organization. 

9. Two (2) passport-sized photos taken within sixty (60) days of application. 

(c) Non-endorsement.  In addition, the applicant shall certify on the application form 
that if his or her registration is granted, he or she will not state, imply, or represent to any person 
that the issuance of the certificate is an endorsement by the City of the product, service, solicitor, 
or the organization represented by the solicitor.   

(d) Proof of identification required.  No certificate of registration shall be issued 
except upon proof of identification, including a photograph of the applicant, in one (1) of the 
following forms: 
 

1. A valid driver’s license of any state in the United States. 
2. A valid United States Uniform Service Identification. 
3. A valid passport. 
4. A valid identification issued by any agency of a state for the purpose of 

identification of the holder. 

 (e) Registration complete with issuance.  Registration shall be complete when the city 
issues the certificate of registration, which shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

 (f) Form of certificate.  Each certificate shall be numbered, shall list the name of the 
individual solicitor and of all organizations on whose behalf he or she is authorized to solicit, the 
date on which the certificate will expire, and shall be dated and signed by the city clerk or his 
designee. 

 (g) Maintenance of registry.  The city shall maintain, available for public inspection 
during normal business hours, a record of every application received and acted upon, together 
with any information pertaining thereto, all certificates of registration issued, and all denials of 
applications. Each application shall be numbered in consecutive order as filed, and each 
certificate issued shall be assigned a number exclusive to the registrant. 



Ordinance Number 2418 
Page 4 

 

 4

 (h) Expiration.  Certificates shall be valid for one month and shall expire at 11:59 
p.m. on the date one month from the date of issuance.   

 (i) Non-transferability.  Certificates of registration shall be issued only in the name 
of the applicant and the firms, corporations or associations on whose behalf he or she is 
authorized to solicit.  Each natural person soliciting must obtain a certificate of registration. 
Certificates shall be nontransferable.  It shall be a violation for a solicitor whose certificate 
authorizes soliciting on behalf of a firm named in the certificate to solicit on behalf of any other 
firm, organization, or association or for any purpose other than that specified on the application. 

 

SECTION 4.    Exemptions from registration. 

 The registration provisions of this Ordinance do not apply to the following: 

(a) Persons making solicitations solely for a church, religious organization or 
charitable organization, including any unincorporated association or corporation 
under the supervision and control of any church, a charitable organization or 
religious organization, if the church or organization is tax exempt under the 
provisions of the United States Internal Revenue Code. 

(b) Students soliciting contributions to finance extracurricular academic, social, 
athletic, artistic, scientific, or cultural programs, provided that the solicitation and 
its purpose have been approved by the principal, president, or chief administrator 
of the school that the students attend and said approval has been filed in writing 
with the City. 

(c) Persons canvassing for the purpose of distributing political literature or materials 
on behalf of a political party, candidate, or public issue or introducing themselves 
as supporters of a candidate, political party, cause, or issue. 

(d) Persons making solicitations solely for a nationally recognized youth organization 
such as the YMCA, YWCA, scouting, or boys’ and girls’ clubs. 

All other provisions of this Ordinance apply to those who qualify for an exemption. 

 

SECTION 5.    Deceptive soliciting practices prohibited. 

(a) No solicitor or canvasser shall intentionally or recklessly make any materially 
false or fraudulent statement in the course of soliciting. 

(b) No solicitor shall use a fictitious name, an alias, or any name other than his or her 
true, correct, and legal name. 

(c) No solicitor shall represent, directly or by implication, that the City or any other 
governmental entity endorses the solicitation or that the granting of a certificate of 
registration implies any endorsement of the solicitor’s product or service or of the 
individual solicitor. 



Ordinance Number 2418 
Page 5 

 

 5

 

SECTION 6.    No registration of felons. 

 No certificate of registration shall be issued to any person who has been convicted of a 
federal or state felony.   

 

SECTION 7.    Revocation of certificate. 

 Any certificate of registration issued hereunder shall be revoked by the City if the 
registrant is convicted of a violation of this Ordinance, if the registrant has falsified the 
application, or otherwise becomes disqualified for the issuance of a certificate of registration.  
Notice of revocation shall be given to the registrant by personal service or by certified mail to the 
address listed on the application. Immediately upon the giving of such notice, the certificate of 
registration shall become null and void and shall remain so unless the revocation is ordered 
rescinded by the City Clerk. 

 

SECTION 8.    Appeal. 

 An applicant whose registration was denied or registrant whose certificate was revoked 
shall have the right to appeal to the City Clerk.  An applicant shall also have the right to appeal 
any adverse decision of the City Clerk to the City Council.  Any appeal must be demanded in 
writing sent by certified mail to the City Clerk within seven (7) calendar days of the decision that 
is being appealed.  The right of appeal to the City Council is not in derogation of any other rights 
in law or equity the applicant might have. 

 

SECTION 9.    Residential “no soliciting” notices. 

(a) Any occupant of a residence or occupants of a multi-family dwelling who 
desire(s) not to have solicitors call on said residence(s) shall give notice of the 
desire to refuse solicitors by displaying a clearly visible weatherproof placard no 
smaller than sixteen (16) square inches and no larger than ninety-four (94) square 
inches stating “No Soliciting” which shall be posted on or near the main entrance 
of the private property and not within the public right-of-way. 

(b) Residents of a residential subdivision may indicate their desire not to have 
solicitors call on any residences in that subdivision by giving notice of the desire 
to refuse solicitors by displaying a clearly visible weatherproof placard no smaller 
than sixteen (16) square inches and no larger than ninety-four (94) square inches 
stating “No Soliciting” which shall be posted on or near the main entrance of the 
subdivision on private property and not within the public right-of-way. 

(c) The display of said placard shall be deemed to constitute notice to any solicitor 
that the inhabitant of the residence does not desire to invite solicitors. 



Ordinance Number 2418 
Page 6 

 

 6

 

SECTION 10.     Duties of solicitors. 

(a) Every solicitor shall, upon entering premises on which a residence is located, 
examine the main entrance to the premises for any “No Soliciting” placard, and if 
one is posted, desist in any efforts to solicit or to leave any literature concerning 
the solicitation at that residence.  Possession of a certificate of registration does 
not relieve any solicitor of this duty. 

(b) It is unlawful for any person to appear at any private residence and canvass or 
solicit whereon a placard bearing the words “No Soliciting” or words of similar 
import is posted for public view.  Possession of a certificate of registration does 
not relieve any solicitor of this duty. 

(c) Any solicitor who is asked to leave any residence by the occupant shall 
immediately and peacefully depart.  Possession of a certificate of registration does 
not relieve any solicitor of this duty. 

(d) Every solicitor shall at all times, while exercising the privilege in the city incident 
to the permit, carry upon his person his permit and the same shall be exhibited by 
such person at all times while soliciting and whenever he is requested to do so by 
any police officer or by any person who is solicited. 

 

SECTION 11.     Time and day restrictions on soliciting. 

It is a violation of this Ordinance for any person, whether registered or not, to solicit any 
person at his or her residence before 9:00 a.m. or after 7:00 p.m. local time, unless the solicitor 
has express permission from the resident to do so. 

It is also a violation of this Ordinance for any person, whether registered or not, to solicit 
any person at his or her residence on Sunday or any Federal holiday. 

 

SECTION 12.     Panhandling prohibited. 

It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in panhandling, which is defined as any 
solicitation made in person upon any street, sidewalk, public way, or public place, or upon the 
premises of any business establishment or other private property that is routinely or customarily 
frequented by the general public, requesting an immediate donation of money or other thing of 
value for oneself or another person or entity.   

 

SECTION 13.     Penalties. 

Any person violating any provision of this Ordinance shall be issued a citation and shall 
be required to appear in the Vestavia Hills Municipal Court. Upon conviction, any such person 



Ordinance Number 2418 
Page 7 

 

 7

shall be subject to any fines and other applicable court costs which may be assessed by the 
Vestavia Hills Municipal Court. 

 

SECTION 14.  Severability. 

 If any word, provision, clause, sentence, paragraph, or subsection of this Ordinance or the 
application thereof to any person or circumstances shall be held invalid by a court of competent 
jurisdiction then the remaining provisions of this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect. 

 

SECTION 15.     Effective date. 

 This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption and publication or 
by its otherwise becoming a law. 

 DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED on this 8th day of October, 2012. 

 
 
 
 
       Steve Ammons 
       Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
       APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2418 
Page 8 

 

 8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby certify 
that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # ____________ is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills 
on the ________ day of ________________, 20_____ as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, Vestavia 
Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day of 
______________, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 

 


	2012_1008CC_A
	2012_0924CC_M
	2012_0927CC_M
	Resolution 4340
	Resolution 4335
	Resolution 4346
	Resolution 4347
	Resolution 4348
	Resolution 4349
	Resolution 4350
	Resolution 4315
	Resolution 4316
	Resolution 4317
	Ordinance 2418



